

REMARKS

VICE PRESIDENT HUBERT HUMPHREY

NEW YORK BOARD OF RABBIS

NEW YORK, NEW YORK

OCTOBER 21, 1968

Rabbi Klaperman

My friends of the New York Rabbinate

Fellow Americans.

I know you may have some questions so I will cover a few points that are on my mind -- and I hope yours -- and then throw open our meeting for a few questions.

Locally, I know the teachers strike and the school crisis is on everyone's mind. And it is a local matter. I will not comment specifically on the merits of the dispute.

My general reaction, however, is one of deep concern. I am deeply troubled at the bitter expressions of anti-semitism from certain extremists concerning this and related matters. No facts could justify such behavior. No cause justifies such insult.

Those of us who revere education know that quality education is one of the prime requisites for achieving justice.

As educators I know you share my concern for the black community at large which has suffered generations of educational deprivation and neglect.

I know you are concerned about crime and violence. Justice cannot be achieved without order.

All Americans want to live in safety.

I know that husbands want their families to be safe.

I know that mothers want their children to be safe on their way home from school.

And I know that merchants want to be safe in their stores.

As I said on national television last week, the first obligation of government is to provide for the safety of every American in his home, in his neighborhood, and in his place of business.

I will make no compromise on this score.

What is needed is action against crime and against disorder -- not slogans -- not words -- and especially not words of hate and fear and bigotry.

I am the only candidate who has proposed concrete solutions. And my proposal is a comprehensive one. Many of you heard or read it.

We desperately need more policemen who are better trained, better paid and who are given better tools and equipment to do the job.

But we must also strike hard at the causes of crime -- poverty, hunger, bigotry, illiteracy, unemployment.

As for Vietnam, I outlined in my nationwide telecast what I would do if peace has not been achieved when I become President.

I spelled out how I would stop the bombing as a step towards peace -- an action consistent with our security and protecting our troops.

And I proposed a cease-fire, the de-Americanization of the war, and free elections in South Vietnam with everyone taking part.

We all devoutly pray that the negotiations can move forward now.

Mr. Nixon has proposed nothing -- as is his custom.

But we recall his early opposition to the nuclear test ban, and his present opposition and blocking of immediate ratification of the nuclear non-proliferation treaty.

We know that a crucial task for the next President will be ending the arms race before it ends the human race. And Mr. Nixon's advisors on these matters: Admiral Strauss, Edward Teller, and General Grove of the Manhattan Project are not men likely to move forward on this urgent assignment.

Finally, I know you are all vitally interested in the Middle -- as am I.

Last week, I answered 9 questions addressed to me by the Jewish Chronicle of London. Many of you will read them in the next few days either there or as quoted in other Anglo-Jewish publications.

In brief, I make the following points.

1. Israel's existence and her frontiers must be accepted by her neighbors.
2. She must have free navigational rights, including Suez and Aquaba.
3. We must recognize the flow of arms from Russia to the Arab States and we must guarantee that Israel will never be insecure through any failure on the part of the United States. This includes immediate sale of the Phantom Jets.
4. There can be no final resolution of hostilities in the area without direct negotiations between the parties involved.

I am also concerned about the anti-semitism and imprisonment of Jews behind the Iron Curtain -- in Poland, in Czechoslovakia, in the Soviet Union. I have indicated my intention to press for the emigration of Soviet Jewry and other Jewish families who wish to leave East European countries.

These are neither new positions or campaign promises with me. I have stated and fought for these basic principles for 20 years -- both publicly, and in the most private, executive sessions of the Senate Foreign Relations Committee, and in the inner councils of the Executive Branch.

I am neither a new nor a fair weather friend.

I consider Israel's security as vital to the security of the United States. I look to Israel as an outpost of democracy in the entire Middle East region.

In 1956 I denounced the Eisenhower-Dulles intervention in Suez on the Senate floor. A few months later I travelled to the Middle East and reported to the Senate that our policy had for the first time driven Russia and the Arab states together in common cause against Israel.

Mr. Nixon, you will recall, took to the television networks and declaimed that it was our finest hour to strike a blow against our colonial allies, Britain and France, to show our independence, and to join hands with the "third world" nations.

I am proud to stand on my 25 year record of action and performance -- and consider Mr. Nixon's empty record on every major issue before the country.

That, in the final analysis, is the crucial question before the people in this election: Who can you trust to lead this country in the next four years?

On that basis, I am ready for the electorate's decision on November 5.

Questions and Answers:

#

FOR THE VICE PRESIDENT'S IMMEDIATE ATTENTION - TODAY , SUNDAY !!!!!



THE DEMOCRATIC NATIONAL COMMITTEE

October 20, 1968

FOR THE VICE PRESIDENT

FROM: John Stewart

SUBJECT: New York Board of Rabbis

As you know, the school strike is boiling over in New York City with bitter black vs. Jew attacks. I think what is included in remarks is the maximum. You should not take sides on the merits.

Here is some confidential info the advance people do not know: Lindsay lost his cool when he called Jewish leaders together last week. He tried to pressure them into forcing the teachers' union to call off the strike. His bitterness and frustration went to the point of threatening them with the possibility of a wave of anti-semitism over the city. The leaders refused to play ball. They felt that his language to them was brutal and raw. They felt however that he was so frustrated that it would be better not to discuss the unhappy meeting. While they have kept silent, the bitterness against Lindsay extended last week to Javits as well. This audience of Rabbis will be well aware of this background.

Several copies of your Jewish Chronicle answers are attached -- you mention these in the text.

Question and Answer Interview
Vice President Hubert Humphrey
The Jewish Chronicle
October 9, 1968

1. What is your general policy for the Middle East?

Answer: I believe the Middle East to be the world's most explosive danger spot and a major threat to world peace. We must work for peace in the area, strengthen moderate constructive regimes, and combine our efforts for economic development of all the Middle Eastern countries.

At the same time, we must reduce the risk of confrontation between ourselves and the Soviet Union. The search for peace in the Middle East depends on our ability to convince the Soviets to turn their efforts to peaceful, economic development.

On October 8, 1968, in my speech to the U. P. I. Editors Convention, in Washington, D. C., I reiterated my position on Israel and the Middle East, as part of my new "Strategy for Peace." I said that "there are six basic steps that must be taken:

"1. The existence of the State of Israel must be accepted by all of its neighbors;

"2. The boundaries of all these countries must be transformed into agreed and secure frontiers;

"3. The State of Israel must have free navigational rights in all international waters, including the Suez Canal and the Gulf of Aquaba;

"4. The arms race must be ended;

"5. The international community must assist in solving the human tragedy posed by the Arab refugees;

"6. The resources of the Middle East countries must be used for human and economic development rather than war and destruction."

I look to Israel not only as a nation which can strengthen resistance to Soviet and Communist pressures in the region, but as an outpost of democracy which can bolster democratic forces everywhere in the Middle East, Asia and Africa by her example. Israel is teaching her entire region that democracy works best.

2. Do you favor the supply of the latest-type combat aircraft to Israel to match the modern equipment supplied by the Soviet Union to the Arabs?

Answer: Yes. We cannot minimize or ignore the flow of Soviet arms into the region, thereby upsetting an already delicate balance. To re-establish that balance -- to preserve the security of the region -- I believe that we must provide Israel with Phantom Aircraft. And we will continue to support Israel with the weapons

it needs if there is a further threat to its existence. Israel will not be insecure through any failure on our part.

But in the future ... we cannot hope for peace ... permanent peace ... lasting peace ... unless there are comprehensive agreements among the major suppliers of arms to the area -- and by the recipient countries, themselves. This arms race must not go unchecked -- for the sake of the people in the region ... for the sake of all of us.

The Soviets say they want an agreement. Let them show their good faith ... let them join with us to end this arms race ... let us conclude an agreement that provides for the security of all these Middle East countries. And let us do it now.

3. Do you agree with the Israeli view that direct talks with the Arab states are the only way of obtaining a secure and lasting peace?

Answer: Yes, I favor active diplomatic efforts to convince Israel's neighbors to pursue a general settlement. It is in the interests of all parties of the Middle East to engage actively in negotiating agreements among the nations in that region.

4. In the absence of such talks, what policy will you advise Israel to follow in the Middle East?

Answer: I hope that Israel will continue to make it clear to its Arab neighbors that it wants peace and that it is ready to cooperate with them for peace and economic development.

5. Are you prepared to reiterate President Johnson's five points as the basis for a viable Middle East settlement?

Answer: My six points for peace above include the policies covered by the President's five points.

6. What active steps are you prepared to take to promote a Middle East settlement?

Answer: I will actively press for acceptance of each of my six points.

Furthermore, as President, I shall make available my good offices -- through the Nations and directly -- to search for peace and understanding in the Middle East. I shall be a Peace President. And I shall dedicate myself to finding peace in the Middle East just as I pledged to do in Vietnam.

And I shall call upon the Soviet union to join me in these efforts. We must take the first steps toward peace, and we must take them now. As Pope Paul said, "Development is the new name for peace." I know this may sound bold; but peace in this region will not be built by the timid.

Our effort must be a combined effort in which we and the Soviet Union join with other major powers -- and with the countries in the region -- in the tasks of economic development. This cooperation should begin with a program for the desalinization of water and then go on to other tasks. I do not expect a sudden success, an overnight end to conflict. But I do expect that quiet counsel and patient effort can lead these countries to the distant day of peace.

7. In your view, is the United States committed to maintaining the territorial integrity of Israel if she is attacked?

Answer: Yes. We continue our firm commitment to the security of the State of Israel. We will take no steps in the Middle East that do not conform to that interest.

8. Should Israel rely on the United Nations for her against Arab terrorism, should she retaliate, or should she do nothing?

Answer: The first duty of government is to protect its citizens. Attacks or invasions must be repulsed. It makes no difference whether the aggressor is a foreign army or foreign-based terrorists.

9. Are you prepared, in any discussion you may have with the Soviet Union, to discuss the status of Soviet Jewry and request permission for those Jews who wish to join relatives outside the U.S.S.R. to do so?

Answer: Yes.

11/0

Brief reports
5-10 minutes

Juli
NY Bd of Rabbis

AER\H @@KPB@166@
DEM FOR HHH DC

HUMPHREY EP
OCTOBER 19, 1968
HUBERT HUMPHREY HEADQUARTERS WASHINGTON
WE ARE CALLING TO NOTIFY YOU THAT OUR
TELETYPEWRITER NUMBER IS 910-964-1382. WE
ARE READY TO RECEIVE CALLS AS OF TODAY.
HARRY LYNHART
@
DEM FOR HHH DC
@
DEM FOR HHH DC
URGENT AND STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL
TO THE ATTN. OF JOHN STEWART
FROM RON PETTINE
HHH ADVANCE NEW YORK CITY

THE FOLLOWING IS INFORMATION THE THE VICE PRESEIDENTS SPEECH
IN NY BEFORE THE BORD OF RABBIS, MONDAY OCTOBER 21ST, L968, AT 11 AM

THE VICE PRESIDENT WILL BE INTRODUCED BY RABBI GILBERT KLAPERMAN

MEMO TO THE VICE PRESEIDENT
MEETING WITH NY BOARD OF RABBIS

THE NEW YORK BOARD OF RABBIS IS THE PRINICPLE REPRESENTATIVE BODY OF THE
THE JEWISH CLERGY, ORTHODOX, CONVERSATIVE AND REFORM IN THE
GREATER NY AG AREA. APPROX. LOOO CONGREGATIONS ARE REPRESENTED
THE MEETING WILL BE ATTENDED BY AN ENLARGED BAORD OF DIRECTORS AND
SOME OF THE MEMBERS OF THE LAY ADVISORY COUNCIL TO THE BOARD
OF RABBIS. RABBI GILBERT KLAPERMAN IS PRESIDENT AND RABBI HAROLD
GRODON IS EXECUTIVE VICE PRES.

THE AREAS OF CONCERN TO THE NEW YORK BOARD OF RABBIS ARE:

1) ORDER AND JUSTICE...THE INTENSDE PROBLEM FOR THE JEWISH
COMMUNITY IN THE CITY OF NEW YORK AS A RESULT OF THE BREAK DOWN OF
RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN WHITE AND BLACK HAS BEEN INTENSIFIED FOR THE
JEWS WHO ARE (1) RESIDENTS OF CHANGING NEIGHBORHOODS, (2) EMPLOYERS,
(3) OWNERS OF SMALL BUSINESS IN GHETTO AREAS AND (4) A MAJOR PER-
CENTAGE OF SCHOOL TEACHERS, WELFARE WORKERS ND CIVIL SERVICE
PR PERSONNEL, (ALL OF WHOM ARE UNDER PRESSURE FROM THE BLACK
POWER MOVEMENT). IN PARTICULAR, THE NEW YORK BOARD HAS BEEN
DEEPLY CONCERNED OVER THE LAST YEAR WITH THE FAILURE TO PROTECT
THE RIGHTS OF TEACHING PERSONELL AND OTHER JEWISH GOVERNMENT WOK
WORKERS AS THE LINDSAY ADMINKISTRATION POLICY HAS TAKEN HOLD. THE
UNITED FEDERATION OF TEACHRS-OCEAN HIL-BROWNSVILLE CONTROVERSY
IS ONE X EXAMPLE., THE HATCHETT CASE WITH NYU IS ANOTHER. BOTH
HAVEELICITED OPE N AND ALMOST BLATANT EXPRESSIONS OF ANIT-
SEMITISM OVER AND AVOVE THE EXPECTED ANTI WHITE FEELING.

I BELIEVE THAT AN EXPRESSION OF STRONG CONCERN FOR THIS GROWING

I BELIEVE THAT AN EXPRESSION OF STRONG CONCERN FOR THIS GROWING PROBLEM OF THE JEWISH COMMUNITY (AS DISTINGUISHED FROM THE WHITE COMMUNITY) IS PROPER. AT THE SAME TIME, THESE RABBIS ARE SYMPATHETIC AND AWARE OF THE PROBLEMS OF DISCRIMINATION AND SEGREGATION SUFFERED BY THE BLACKS AND ARE CONSCIOUS OF THE OVER-WHELMING NEED TO DEAL EFFECTIVELY WITH AMERICA'S "MAJOR UNFINISHED BUSINESS" (KERNER COMMISSION REPT.). THEY UNDERSTAND THAT A SOCIETY WHICH REOPRESSES ANY GROUP BECAUSE OF RACE OR COLOR WILL SOON ADD THE JEWS TO THE LIST OF VICTIMS. TO THIS PRAGMATIC REASON, THEY ALSO ADD THE IDEALISTIC MANDATE OF JEWISH TRADITION FOR "EQUALITY AND JUSTICE". THEREFORE, THEY WILL ACCEPT YOUR CONCEPT AN APPROACH AS ENUNCIATED BY YOUR TASK FORCE TASK FORCE NAMELY, "ORDER AND JUSTICE" NOT JUST LAW AND ORDER.

2) ISRAEL: ON ISRAEL YOU MIGHT MENTION THAT AN "OLD AND CONTINUING FRIEND" (HHH) IS MORE TO BE COUNTED ON THAN A "NEW FRIEND" OR RECENT CONVERT. (NIXON). YOUR RECORD IN THIS AREA IS UNPARALLELED AND GOES BACK A QUARTER OF A CENTURY. MORE SPECIFICALLY, THERE IS SOME CONCERN ABOUT THE PRESENT NEGOTIATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PHANTOM JETS, WHICH THE PRESIDENT INDICTED WOULD BE MADE AVAILABLE. AFTER PRIME MINISTER ESHKOL'S VISIT WITH THE PRESIDENT ALMOST A YEAR AGO, THERE WAS WIDE-SPREAD BELIEF THAT THE FIFTY JETS WOULD BE SENT SHORTLY THEREAFTER. TO THE CONTRARY NO PROGRESS WAS MADE UNTIL CONGRESS ACTED IN THE LAST SEVERAL WEEKS, AND THE PRESIDENT ISSUED HIS STATEMENT THEREAFTER. YOU SHOULD MAKE CLEAR THAT THE NEGOTIATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE JET PLANES WILL NOT BE PERMITTED TO BE DRAFFED OUT AND THE JETS WILL BE SENT PROMPTLY. OF COURSE, YOU CAN REITERATE THE IMPORTANCE OF ISRAEL AS A WESTERN-STYLE DEMOCRACY, TO THE UNITED STATES AND TO WHAT WE ALL BELIEVE IN.

3) THE PROBLEM OF JEWS BEHIND THE IRON CURTAIN, IN PARTICULAR, POLAND, RUSSIA AND CHECKOSLOVAKIA....ANIT SEMITISM IN POLAND IS OF A MORE VIRULENT TYPE THAN IN RUSSIA, BUT THE PROBLEM OF JEWISH SURVIVAL IN COMMUNIST COUNTRIES IS OF CONTINUING CONCERN TO THE AMERICAN JEWISH COMMUNITY. RECENT CONTACTS WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE HAVE NOT BEEN AS HELPFUL AS IN PRIOR YEARS. MOREOVER, THERE IS A FEELING THAT THE PRESIDENT HAS BEEN ISOLATED FROM THE JEWISH COMMUNITY...AMERICAN JEWISH COMMUNITY...SINCE THERE IS NO LONGER LIASON IN THE WHITE HOUSE. (SUCH A LIASON EXISTED IN THE TRUMAN-EISENHOWER-KENNEDY ADMINISTRATIONS.) SEE ITEM "4" BELOW. A FIRM EXPRESSION OF YOUR ADMINISTRATIONS SUPPORT IN THIS AREA IN THE FUTURE WOULD BE MOST WELCOMED.

4)LIASON WITH AMERICAN JEWISH COMMUNITY.....AS IS

AS I STATED ABOVE THERE HAS BEEN GREAT UNHAPPINESS ABOUT THE FAILURE OF THE PRESENT ADMINISTRATION TO CONTINUE THE PRACTICE

PRACTICE OF THE THREE PREVIOUS ADMINISTRATIONS WITH RESPECT TO A LIASON OR SPECIFIC CONTACT FOR THE AMERICAN JEWISH COMMUNITY IN THE WHITE HOUSE. IF YOU DO NOT MENTION IT, YOU WILL DOUBTLESS HAVE A QUESTION ABOUT IT. YOU MIGHT CONSIDER ANTICIPATING THE QUESTION AND STATE THAT YOU PLAN TO HAVE SUCH A TOP DESIGNEE ON YOUR STAFF IN THE WHITE HOUSE.

THE ABOVE MEMO WAS PREPARED BY STAN LOWELL, CAMPAIGN PLANNER FOR NYS HHH-MUSKIE.

YOU CAN EXPECT A QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION AFTER ANY REMARKS THAT ARE GIVEN.....

REMARKS OF HUBERT H. HUMPHREY
before the

N.Y. Board of Rabbis

Monday, October 21, 1968 -- 11:00 A.M.

Rabbi # Klaperman

My friends of the New York ##### Rabbinate

Fellow Americans

I have ~~only~~ a few minutes to spend with you ~~this morning~~. When a fellow has as much ground to cover as I do, he often has to have the briefest moments with his oldest friends -- in hopes they will understand.

I know you may have some questions so I will cover a few points that are on my mind -- and I hope yours -- and then throw ^{over} ~~it~~ ~~open~~ ^{meeting} for a few questions.

Locally, I know ~~that~~ the teachers strike and the school crisis is on ~~everyone's~~ mind. As it is a local matter, ~~and I~~ ^{specifically} have ~~very few facts~~ -- I will not comment ^{on} the merits of the ~~strike~~ ^{dispute}.

My general reaction, however, is one of ^{deep} concern. I am deeply troubled at the bitter expressions of anti-semitism ~~we have~~ ^{heard about} from certain extremists concerning this and related matters. No facts could justify such behavior. No cause justifies such insult.

At the same time, ~~as~~ ^{as} educators I know you share my concern for the black community at large which has suffered generations of educational ^{deprivation} neglect. Those of us who revere education know that quality education is ~~the~~ one of the prime requisites for achieving justice.

Finally, my sympathies lie with the total ~~community~~ which has suffered from poor and insensitive leadership.

I know you are concerned about ^{crime} ~~safety~~ and violence. *be achieved without order.*
Justice cannot flourish ~~without an end to the current turmoil.~~

All Americans want to live in safety.

I know that husbands want their families to be safe.

I know that mothers want their children to be safe on their way home from school.

And I know that merchants want to be safe in their stores.

As I said on national television last week, the first obligation of government is to provide for the safety of every American in his home, in his neighborhood, and in his place of business.

I will make no compromise on this score. ~~We cannot build a just society in the midst of violence.~~

What is needed is action against crime and against disorder -- not slogans -- not words -- and especially not words of hate and fear and bigotry.

only

I am the candidate who has proposed concrete solutions. And my proposal is a comprehensive one. Many of you heard or read it.

We desperately need
~~The cornerstone is~~ more policemen who are better trained,

better paid and who are given better tools and equipment to do the job.

We must also strike hard at
But ~~the program~~ also requires ~~the~~ eliminating the causes of crime -- poverty, hunger, bigotry, illiteracy, unemployment.

~~This week, we all breathlessly await developments in Paris. We all hope that great progress will be made there -- perhaps a bombing halt soon -- perhaps an end to the war by January 20th.~~

~~In my September 30th nationwide telecast~~, I outlined ^{in my nationwide telecast} what I would do if peace has not been achieved when I become President.

I spelled out how I would stop the bombing as a step towards peace -- an action ~~consistent~~ with our security and protecting our troops.

We all devoutly pray that the negotiations can move forward now.

And I proposed a cease-fire, the de-Americanization of the war, and free elections in South Vietnam with everyone taking part.

Mr. Nixon has proposed nothing -- as is his custom. ^{But} we recall his ~~predilection for brinkmanship~~ ^{his} early opposition to the nuclear test ban, and his present opposition and blocking of immediate ratification of the nuclear non-proliferation treaty.

~~We also know that the list he recently released of his scientific advisers were almost all at the General ~~May~~ end of the spectrum -- including such men as Admiral Strauss, Edward Teller, and General Grove of the Manhattan Project -- all prone to an escalation of the nuclear arms race.~~

are not men likely to move forward on this urgent assignment.

Finally, I know you are all interested in ~~the~~ Middle East -- as am I.

(initials)

Last week, I answered 9 questions ^{addressed} ~~put~~ to me by the Jewish Chronicle of London. Many of you will read them in the next few days either ~~there~~ there or as quoted in other Anglo-Jewish publications.

I have brought along some copies of my answers which I will leave with you. Out of respect ~~to~~ the Chronicle, I would urge you not to quote the source until it is published.

In brief, I make the following points:

We know that a crucial task for the next President will be ending the arms race before it ends the human race. And Mr. Nixon's advisors on this matter:

1. Israel's existence and her frontiers must be accepted by her neighbors.

2. She must have free navigational rights, including Suez and Aquaba.

3. We must recognize the flow of arms from Russia to the Arab States and we must guarantee that Israel will never be insecure through any failure on the part of the United States. This includes immediate sale of the Phantom Jets.

4. There can be no final resolution of ~~the~~ hostilities in the area without direct negotiations between the parties involved.

I am also concerned about the anti-semitism and imprisonment of Jews behind the Iron Curtain# -- in Poland, in Czechoslovakia, in the Soviet Union. ~~You will see that in the last question I have indicated my intention to press for the emigration of Soviet Jewry~~ *other Jewish families who wish to leave East European countries.*

These are neither new positions or campaign promises with me. ~~I hope everyone here knows that~~ I have stated and fought for these basic principles for 20 years -- both publicly, and in the most private, executive sessions of the Senate Foreign Relations Committee, and in the inner councils of the Executive Branch.

I consider Israel's security as vital to the security of the United States. I look to Israel as an outpost of democracy# in the entire Middle East region.

I am neither a new nor a fair weather friend. #####

In 1956 I denounced the Eisenhower-Dulles intervention in Suez on the Senate floor. A few months later I travelled to the Middle East and reported to the Senate that our policy had for the first time driven Russia and the Arab states together in common cause against Israel.

Mr. Nixon, ~~that~~ you will recall, took to the television networks and ~~declared~~ that it was our finest hour to strike a blow against our ~~the~~ colonial allies, Brittain and France, to show our independence, and to join hands with the "third ~~world~~ world" nations.

I am proud to stand on 25 year

~~I only ask you, in fairness, to compare my record of action &~~

~~performance friendship and interest over 25 years ~~with~~ -- and consider Mr.~~

empty record on every major issue before the country

Nixon's ~~failure to be genuinely concerned over the years plus the~~

~~nature of the special interests, including oil, which are bound~~

~~to be well represented in the administration he would bring to~~

~~Washington.~~

Thank you.

Q & A

That, in the final analysis, is the crucial question before the people in this election: Who can you trust to lead this country in the next four years?

On that basis, ~~I am~~ I am ready for the electorate's decision on Nov. 5.

Questions and answers:



Minnesota Historical Society

Copyright in this digital version belongs to the Minnesota Historical Society and its content may not be copied without the copyright holder's express written permission. Users may print, download, link to, or email content, however, for individual use.

To request permission for commercial or educational use, please contact the Minnesota Historical Society.



www.mnhs.org